

POMERANTZ LLP

Jennifer Pafiti (SBN 282790)
468 North Camden Drive
Beverly Hills, CA 90210
Telephone: (818) 532-6499
E-mail: jpafiti@pomlaw.com

Attorney for Plaintiff

- additional counsel on signature page -

**UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA**

GLEN BARNES, Individually and On)	Case No.:
Behalf of All Others Similarly Situated,)	
)	CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
Plaintiff,)	
)	JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
vs.)	
)	
EDISON INTERNATIONAL,)	
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON)	
COMPANY, PEDRO J. PIZARRO)	
MARIA RIGATTI, KEVIN M. PAYNE,)	
WILLIAM M. PETMECKY III,)	
THEODORE F. CRAVER, JR. and)	
WILLIAM JAMES SCILACCI,)	
)	
Defendants.)	

Plaintiff Glen Barnes (“Plaintiff”), individually and on behalf of all other persons similarly situated, by Plaintiff’s undersigned attorneys, for Plaintiff’s complaint against Defendants, alleges the following based upon personal knowledge as to Plaintiff and Plaintiff’s own acts, and information and belief as to all other matters, based upon, inter alia, the investigation conducted by and through Plaintiff’s attorneys, which included,

1 among other things, a review of the Defendants’ public documents, conference calls and
2 announcements made by Defendants, United States Securities and Exchange
3 Commission (“SEC”) filings, wire and press releases published by and regarding Edison
4 International and Southern California Edison Company (“SCE”, and together with
5 Edison International, “Edison” or the “Company”), analysts’ reports and advisories
6 about the Company, and information readily obtainable on the Internet. Plaintiff
7 believes that substantial evidentiary support will exist for the allegations set forth herein
8 after a reasonable opportunity for discovery.
9
10
11

12 **NATURE OF THE ACTION**

13 1. This is a federal securities class action on behalf of all persons and entities
14 who purchased or otherwise acquired Edison securities between February 23, 2016, and
15 November 12, 2018, both dates inclusive (the “Class Period”), seeking to recover
16 damages caused by Defendants’ violations of the federal securities laws and to pursue
17 remedies under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
18 “Exchange Act”) and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder, against the Company and
19 certain of its top officials.
20
21
22

23 2. Edison International was founded in 1886 and is based in Rosemead,
24 California. Edison International is the parent holding company of SCE. SCE is an
25 investor-owned public utility primarily engaged in the business of supplying and
26 delivering electricity to an approximately 50,000 square mile area of southern
27 California.
28

1 3. The Company supplies electricity primarily to residential, commercial,
2 industrial, agricultural, and other customers, as well as public authorities through
3 transmission and distribution networks. Its transmission facilities consist of lines
4 ranging from 33 kV to 500 kV and substations; and distribution system comprises
5 approximately 53,000 line miles of overhead lines, 38,000 line miles of underground
6 lines, and 800 substations located in California. The Company serves approximately 5
7 million customers.
8
9

10 4. Throughout the Class Period, Defendants made materially false and
11 misleading statements regarding the Company's business, operational and compliance
12 policies. Specifically, Defendants made false and/or misleading statements and/or
13 failed to disclose that: (i) the Company failed to maintain electricity transmission and
14 distribution networks in compliance with safety requirements and regulations
15 promulgated under state law; (ii) consequently, the Company was in violation of state
16 law and regulations; (iii) the Company's noncompliant electricity networks created a
17 significantly heightened risk of wildfires in California; and (iv) as a result, the
18 Company's public statements were materially false and misleading at all relevant times.
19
20
21
22

23 5. On November 8, 2018, two wildfires started in Southern California,
24 designated the Hill Fire and the Woolsey Fire. The Hill Fire, which broke out in
25 Ventura County, subsequently grew to 4,531 acres, according to the California
26 Department of Forestry and Fire Protection ("Cal Fire"). Stretching from Los Angeles
27 County to Ventura County, the Woolsey Fire burned 93,662 acres, including 83 percent
28

1 of all National Parks Service land in the Santa Monica Mountains National Recreation
2 Area, according to Cal Fire.

3
4 6. On November 12, 2018, the California Public Utilities Commission
5 (“CPUC”) launched an investigation into Edison’s subsidiary SCE, in order to “assess
6 the compliance of electrical facilities with applicable rules and regulations in fire-
7 impacted areas.”
8

9
10 7. Following CPUC’s announcement, Edison International’s stock price fell
11 \$7.44 per share, or more than 12%, to close at \$53.56 per share on November 12, 2018.
12 Over the following days, as the Hill and Woolsey Fires continued to burn, Edison
13 International’s stock price continued to fall, closing at \$47.19 on November 15, 2018, a
14 total drop of 32% from its price prior to CPUC’s announcement.
15

16
17 8. As a result of Defendants’ wrongful acts and omissions, and the
18 precipitous decline in the market value of the Company’s securities, Plaintiff and other
19 Class members have suffered significant losses and damages.
20

21 **JURISDICTION AND VENUE**

22
23 9. The claims asserted herein arise under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the
24 Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 78j(b) and 78t(a), and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder,
25 17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5.

26
27 10. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant
28 to 28 U.S.C. § 1331 and Section 27 of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78aa.

1 11. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to Section 27 of the Exchange
2 Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78aa, and 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b). Edison is headquartered in this
3 District, Defendants conduct business in this District, and a significant portion of
4 Defendants' actions took place within this District.
5

6 12. In connection with the acts alleged in this complaint, Defendants, directly
7 or indirectly, used the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce, including,
8 but not limited to, the mails, interstate telephone communications, and the facilities of
9 the national securities markets.
10
11

12 PARTIES

13 13. Plaintiff, as set forth in the attached Certification, acquired Edison
14 securities at artificially inflated prices during the Class Period and was damaged upon
15 the revelation of the alleged corrective disclosures.
16
17

18 14. Defendant Edison International is a California corporation with its
19 principal executive offices located at 2244 Walnut Grove Avenue (P.O. Box 976),
20 Rosemead, California 91770. Edison International's common stock trades in an
21 efficient market on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol "EIX."
22

23 15. Defendant SCE, is a California corporation with its principal executive
24 offices located at 2244 Walnut Grove Avenue (P.O. Box 976), Rosemead, California
25 91770. SCE's securities are traded on the NYSE American LLC (together with the
26 New York Stock Exchange, "NYSE").
27
28

1 16. Defendant Theodore F. Craver, Jr served as the Chief Executive Officer of
2 Edison International from 2008 until his resignation, effective September 30, 2016.

3 17. Defendant Pedro J. Pizarro has served as the Chief Executive Officer of
4 Edison International since October 2016. Prior to that, he served as President of Edison
5 International from June 2016 to September 2016 and President of SCE from October
6 2014 to May 2016.
7
8

9 18. Defendant Maria Rigatti served as the Chief Financial Officer of Edison
10 International since October 2016, and prior to her appointment as CFO of Edison
11 international she served in the same capacity for SCE.
12

13 19. Defendant Kevin M. Payne served as President and Chief Executive
14 Officer of SCE since June 2016.
15

16 20. Defendant William M. Petmecky has served as Vice President, Chief
17 Financial Officer and Controller of SCE since October 2016.
18

19 21. Defendant William James Scilacci, served as the Chief Financial Officer
20 of Edison International until his resignation, effective September 30, 2016.
21

22 22. The Defendants referenced above in ¶¶ 16-21 are sometimes referred to
23 herein collectively as the “Individual Defendants.”
24

25 23. The Individual Defendants possessed the power and authority to control the
26 contents of the Company’s SEC filings, press releases, and other market
27 communications. The Individual Defendants were provided with copies of the
28 Company’s SEC filings and press releases alleged herein to be misleading prior to or

1 shortly after their issuance and had the ability and opportunity to prevent their issuance
2 or to cause them to be corrected. Because of their positions with the Company, and their
3 access to material information available to them but not to the public, the Individual
4 Defendants knew that the adverse facts specified herein had not been disclosed to and
5 were being concealed from the public, and that the positive representations being made
6 were then materially false and misleading. The Individual Defendants are liable for the
7 false statements and omissions pleaded herein.
8
9

10 **SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS**

11 **Background**

12
13 24. Edison International was founded in 1886 and is based in Rosemead,
14 California. Edison International is the parent holding company of SCE. SCE is an
15 investor-owned public utility primarily engaged in the business of supplying and
16 delivering electricity to an approximately 50,000 square mile area of southern
17 California.
18

19
20 25. The Company supplies electricity primarily to residential, commercial,
21 industrial, agricultural, and other customers, as well as public authorities through
22 transmission and distribution networks. Its transmission facilities consist of lines
23 ranging from 33 kV to 500 kV and substations. Its distribution system comprises
24 approximately 53,000 line miles of overhead lines, 38,000 line miles of underground
25 lines, and 800 substations located in California. The Company serves approximately 5
26 million customers.
27
28

1 **Materially False and Misleading Statements Issued During the Class Period**¹

2 26. The Class Period begins on February 23, 2016, when the Company filed
3 its annual statement on Form 10-K for the fiscal year December 31, 2015 (the “2015
4 10-K”). In the 2015 10-K, the Company acknowledges that SCE’s operations are
5 regulated by CPUC. Specifically, “CPUC has the authority to regulate, among other
6 things, retail rates, energy purchases on behalf of retail customers, SCE capital
7 structure, rate of return, issuance of securities, disposition of utility assets and facilities,
8 oversight of nuclear decommissioning funding and costs, and aspects of the
9 transmission system planning, site identification and construction, including safety and
10 environmental mitigation.”
11

12 27. The Company touted its investment in the safety of its equipment, stating
13 that the “*SCE is investing in and strengthening its electric grid and driving*
14 *operational and service excellence to improve system safety, reliability and service*
15 *while controlling costs and rates.*”
16

17 28. Defendants acknowledged in 2015 10-K that their business may result in
18 damage to private and public property, as well as injuries to bystanders, stating in
19 relevant part:
20

21 ***The generation, transmission and distribution of electricity are dangerous***
22 ***and involve inherent risks of damage to private property and injury to***
23 ***employees and the general public.***
24

25
26
27
28

¹ Emphasis added throughout, unless otherwise noted.

1 Electricity is dangerous for employees and the general public should they
2 come in contact with electrical current or equipment, including through
3 downed power lines or if equipment malfunctions. Injuries and property
4 damage caused by such events can subject SCE to liability that, despite the
5 existence of insurance coverage, can be significant. The CPUC has
6 increased its focus on public safety issues with an emphasis on heightened
7 compliance with construction and operating standards and the potential for
8 penalties being imposed on utilities. Additionally, the CPUC has delegated
9 to its staff the authority to issue citations to electric utilities, which can
10 impose fines of up to \$50,000 per violation per day, pursuant to the CPUC's
11 jurisdiction for violations of safety rules found in statutes, regulations, and
12 the CPUC's General Orders. Such penalties and liabilities could be
13 significant and materially affect SCE's liquidity and results of operations.

14 29. Relatedly, the 2015 10-K discussed the risks posed to the Company's
15 financial condition and operations should they be responsible for wild-fires, stating in
16 relevant part:

17 ***Weather-related incidents and other natural disasters could materially***
18 ***affect SCE's financial condition and results of operations.***

19 Weather-related incidents and other natural disasters, including storms,
20 wildfires and earthquakes, can disrupt the generation and transmission of
21 electricity, and can seriously damage the infrastructure necessary to deliver
22 power to SCE's customers. These events can lead to lost revenues and
23 increased expenses, including higher maintenance and repair costs. They
24 can also result in regulatory penalties and disallowances, particularly if SCE
25 encounters difficulties in restoring power to its customers on a timely basis.
26 These occurrences could materially affect SCE's business, financial
27 condition and results of operations, and the inability to restore power to
28 SCE's customers could also materially damage the business reputation of
SCE and Edison International

SCE's insurance coverage for wildfires arising from its ordinary
operations may not be sufficient.

Edison International has experienced increased costs and difficulties in
obtaining insurance coverage for wildfires that could arise from SCE's
ordinary operations. In addition, the insurance that has been obtained for

1 wildfire liabilities may not be sufficient. Uninsured losses and increases in
2 the cost of insurance may not be recoverable in customer rates. A loss
3 which is not fully insured or cannot be recovered in customer rates could
4 materially affect Edison International's and SCE's financial condition and
5 results of operations. Furthermore, insurance for wildfire liabilities may not
6 continue to be available at all or at rates or on terms similar to those
7 presently available to Edison International.

8 * * *

9 *Wildfire Insurance*

10 ***Severe wildfires in California have given rise to large damage claims against***
11 ***California utilities for fire-related losses alleged to be the result of the failure of***
12 ***electric and other utility equipment.*** Invoking a California Court of Appeal
13 decision, plaintiffs pursuing these claims have relied on the doctrine of inverse
14 condemnation, which can impose strict liability (including liability for a claimant's
15 attorneys' fees) for property damage. Prolonged drought conditions in California
16 have also increased the risk of severe wildfire events. On June 1, 2015, Edison
17 International renewed its liability insurance coverage, which included coverage for
18 SCE's wildfire liabilities up to a \$610 million limit (with a self-insured retention
19 of \$10 million per wildfire occurrence). Various coverage limitations within the
20 policies that make up this insurance coverage could result in additional self-
21 insured costs in the event of multiple wildfire occurrences during the policy period
22 (June 1, 2015 to May 31, 2016). SCE also has additional coverage for certain
23 wildfire liabilities of \$390 million, which applies when total covered wildfire
24 claims exceed \$610 million, through June 14, 2016. SCE may experience
25 coverage reductions and/or increased insurance costs in future years. ***No***
26 ***assurance can be given that future losses will not exceed the limits of SCE's***
27 ***insurance coverage.***

28 30. The 2015 10-K discussed a prior incident where its equipment
malfunctioned and caused multiple fires in Long Beach, California:

In July 2015, SCE's customers who are served via the network portion of
SCE's electric system in Long Beach, California experienced service
interruptions due to multiple underground vault fires and underground
cable failures. No personal injuries have been reported in connection with
these events. SCE instituted an internal investigation and commissioned an
external investigation of these events and their causes, ***which revealed that***

1 *the main cause of the interruptions was a lack of adequate management*
2 *oversight of the downtown network system. The investigations also*
3 *revealed deficiencies in maintaining the knowledge base on the*
4 *configuration and operation of the system, and a lack of sophisticated*
5 *controls needed to more efficiently and effectively prevent and respond to*
6 *the cascading events that occurred.*

7 31. On February 21, 2017, when the Company filed its annual statement on
8 Form 10-K for the fiscal year December 31, 2016 (the “2016 10-K”). In the 2016 10-
9 K, the Company acknowledges that SEC’s operations are regulated by CPUC.
10 Specifically, “CPUC has the authority to regulate, among other things, retail rates,
11 energy purchases on behalf of retail customers, SCE capital structure, rate of return,
12 issuance of securities, disposition of utility assets and facilities, oversight of nuclear
13 decommissioning funding and costs, and aspects of the transmission system planning,
14 site identification and construction, *including safety.*”

15
16
17 32. The Company touted its purported dedication to improve its infrastructure
18 in the 2016 10-K, highlighting the SCE’s “plans” to modernize its electric grid, stating
19 in relevant part:
20

21 **Electricity Industry Trends**

22
23 The electric power industry is undergoing transformative change driven by
24 technological advancements such as customer-owned generation and energy
25 storage, which could alter the nature of energy generation and delivery.
26 California's environmental policy objectives are accelerating the pace and
27 scope of the industry change. The electric grid is a critical enabler of the
28 adoption of new energy technologies that support California's climate
change and GHG reduction objectives, which continue to be publicly
supported by California policy makers notwithstanding a potential change
in the federal approach to such matters. The grid is also key to enabling
more customer choices with respect to new energy technologies. *The*

1 *transformative change taking place in the electric power industry is*
2 *integral to Edison International's strategy.*

3 *SCE plans to be a key enabler of the adoption of new energy technologies*
4 *that benefit customers of the electric grid while also helping the state of*
5 *California achieve its environmental goals. SCE expects to achieve these*
6 *objectives through modernizing the electric grid to improve the safety and*
7 *reliability of the transmission and distribution network and enabling*
8 *increased penetration of DERs [distributed energy resources]. SCE's*
9 *ongoing focus to drive operational and service excellence should allow it to*
10 *achieve these objectives while controlling costs and customer rates. SCE's*
11 *focus on the transmission and distribution side of the utility business aligns*
12 *with California's policy supporting competitive power markets. It also*
13 *represents a lower risk than investment in conventional, natural gas-fired*
14 *generation, which faces potentially stricter GHG limits as well as the*
15 *increasing competitiveness of renewable resource fueled generation....*

16 33. Further, discussing its capital expenditure plans “[t]o support a safe and
17 reliable transmission and distribution network, and to modernize the electric grid”, the
18 Company stated that it forecasted capital expenditures of up to \$19.3 billion for 2017
19 through 2020. More specifically, the Company forecasted capital expenditures of \$4.16
20 billion in 2017, \$182 million of which was to be used to modernize its electric grid.
21 Commenting on these forecasted expenditures, the 2016 10-K states that the “2017
22 capital expenditures is a baseline of grid modernization spending that will promote
23 increased safety and reliability and also allow for a timely ramp-up of grid
24 modernization capital expenditures in subsequent years. “

1 34. The Company also discussed its General Rate Case (“GRC”)² for 2018,
2 stating that “[t]he capital programs requested in SCE's 2018 GRC are focused on safety
3 and reliability through investments in the distribution grid to replace aging equipment
4 and enhance capabilities to integrate increasing amounts of DERs.”

5
6 35. Discussing the ratemaking process overseen by CPUC, the 2016 10-K
7 notes the importance of safety measures put in place by SCE, explaining:
8

9 Revenue authorized by the CPUC through triennial GRC proceedings is
10 intended to provide SCE a reasonable opportunity to recover its costs and
11 earn a return on its net investments in generation and distribution assets and
12 general plant (also referred to as "rate base") on a forecast basis. The
13 CPUC sets an annual revenue requirement for the base year which is made
14 up of the operation and maintenance costs, depreciation, taxes and a return
15 consistent with the authorized cost of capital (discussed below). In the
16 GRC proceedings, the CPUC also generally approves the level of capital
17 spending on a forecast basis. Following the base year, the revenue
18 requirements for the remaining two years are set by a methodology
19 established in the GRC proceeding, which generally, among other items,
20 includes annual allowances for escalation in operation and maintenance
21 costs and additional changes in capital-related investments. *The CPUC is*
22 *conducting a triennial safety model assessment proceeding ("S-MAP") to*
23 *evaluate the utility models used to prioritize safety risks, examine the*
24 *utilities' assessment of their key risks and their proposed mitigation*
25 *programs, and develop requirements for annual reporting of risk*
26 *spending and mitigation results.* The risk assessment approach developed
27 in the S-MAP will be incorporated into SCE's triennial GRC through a
28 Risk Assessment and Mitigation Phase (RAMP), which will be initiated by
November 15 in the year preceding each GRC application filing date.
SCE's first RAMP will be filed in November 2018 for its 2021 GRC. The
purpose of the RAMP is to provide information about the utility's
assessment of its key safety risks and its proposed programs for mitigating

² GRCs are proceedings used to address the costs of operating and maintaining the utility system and the allocation of those costs among customer classes. For California's three large investor-owned utilities (IOUs), the GRCs are parsed into two phases. Phase I of a GRC determines the total amount the utility is authorized to collect, while Phase II determines the share of the cost each customer class is responsible and the rate schedules for each class. Each large electric utility files a GRC application every three years. For smaller utilities, authorized costs and allocation of costs are done in just one phase.

1 those risks. The information developed during the RAMP will inform the
2 utility's recommended projects and funding requests in the subsequent
3 phase of the GRC.

4 36. The 2016 10-K also contained statements nearly identical to those detailed
5 above in ¶ 28, concerning the risks associated with the “generation, transmission and
6 distribution of electricity[,]” and wild-fires. The 2016 10-K also discussed the
7 Company’s service interruptions in Long Beach, detailed above in in ¶ 30, which were
8 caused by equipment fire and resulted in various penalties.
9

10 37. On February 22, 2018, the Company filed its annual statement on Form
11 10-K for the fiscal year December 31, 2017 (the “2017 10-K”). In the 2017 10-K, the
12 Company acknowledges that SEC’s operations are regulated by CPUC. Specifically,
13 “CPUC has the authority to regulate, among other things, . . . disposition of utility
14 assets and facilities, . . . and aspects of the transmission system planning, site
15 identification and construction, *including safety and environmental mitigation.*”
16
17

18 38. The 2017 10-K also contained statements nearly identical to those detailed
19 above in ¶ 28, concerning the risks associated with the “generation, transmission and
20 distribution of electricity[,]” and weather-related incidents.
21
22

23 39. The 2017 10-K also discussed various risks to the company as a result of
24 wild-fire related liabilities:
25

26 *Damage claims against SCE for wildfire-related losses may materially*
27 *affect SCE’s financial condition and results of operations.*

28 Prolonged drought conditions and shifting weather patterns in California
resulting from climate change as well as increased tree mortality rates have

1 increased the duration of the wildfire season and the risk of severe wildfire
2 events. Severe wildfires and increased urban development in high fire risk
3 areas in California have given rise to large damage claims against California
4 utilities for fire-related losses alleged to be the result of utility practices
5 and/or the failure of electric and other utility equipment. Certain California
6 courts have previously found utilities to be strictly liable for property
7 damage, regardless of fault, by applying the theory of inverse condemnation
8 when a utility's facilities were determined to be a substantial cause of a
9 wildfire that caused the property damage. The rationale stated by these
10 courts for applying this theory to investor-owned utilities is that property
11 losses resulting from a public improvement, such as the distribution of
12 electricity, can be spread across the larger community that benefited from
13 such improvement. However, in December 2017, the CPUC issued a
14 decision denying the investor-owned utility's request to include in its rates
15 uninsured wildfire-related costs arising from several 2007 fires, finding that
16 the investor-owned utility did not prudently manage and operate its
17 facilities prior to or at the outset of the 2007 wildfires. An inability to
18 recover uninsured wildfire-related costs could materially affect SCE's
19 business, financial condition and results of operations. For example, if SCE
20 is found liable for damages related to the December 2017 Wildfires, and
21 SCE is unable to, or believes that it will be unable to, recover those
22 damages, SCE may not have sufficient cash or equity to pay dividends to
23 Edison International or may be prohibited from declaring such dividends
24 because it does not meet California law requirements for the declaration of
25 dividends. . . .

19 ***SCE's insurance coverage for wildfires arising from its ordinary***
20 ***operations may not be sufficient.***

21 Edison International has experienced increased costs and difficulties in
22 obtaining insurance coverage for wildfires that could arise from SCE's
23 ordinary operations. Edison International, SCE or its contractors may
24 experience coverage reductions and/or increased wildfire insurance costs in
25 future years. No assurance can be given that losses will not exceed the
26 limits of SCE's or its contractors' insurance coverage. SCE may not be able
27 to recover uninsured losses and increases in the cost of insurance in
28 customer rates. Losses which are not fully insured or cannot be recovered in
customer rates could materially affect Edison International's and SCE's
financial condition and results of operations.

1 40. The 2017 10-K also discussed wildfires in southern California in
2 December of 2017, and noted the serious risks that may arise should the Company be
3 found responsible for the fires. Specifically, the filing stated in relevant part:
4

5 **Southern California Wildfires**

6 In December 2017, several wind-driven wildfires (the "December 2017
7 Wildfires") impacted portions of SCE's service territory and caused
8 substantial damage to both residential and business properties and service
outages for SCE customers.

9 The largest of these fires, known as the Thomas Fire, originated in Ventura
10 County and burned acreage located in both Ventura and Santa Barbara
11 Counties. According to the most recent California Department of Forestry
12 and Fire Protection ("Cal Fire") incident information reports, the Thomas
13 Fire burned over 280,000 acres, destroyed an estimated 1,063 structures,
14 damaged an estimated 280 structures and resulted in two fatalities. During
15 2017, SCE incurred approximately \$35 million of capital expenditures
related to restoration of service resulting from the December 2017
Wildfires.

16 The causes of the December 2017 Wildfires are being investigated by Cal
17 Fire and other fire agencies. SCE believes the investigations include the
18 possible role of SCE's facilities. SCE expects that one or more of the fire
19 agencies will ultimately issue reports concerning the origins and causes of
20 the December 2017 Wildfires but cannot predict when these reports will be
21 released or if any findings will be issued before the investigations are
completed.

22 Any potential liability of SCE for December 2017 Wildfire-related
23 damages will depend on a number of factors, including whether SCE is
24 determined to have substantially caused, or contributed to, the damages and
25 whether parties seeking recovery of damages will be required to show
26 negligence in addition to causation. Certain California courts have
27 previously found utilities to be strictly liable for property damage,
28 regardless of fault, by applying the theory of inverse condemnation when a
utility's facilities were determined to be a substantial cause of a wildfire
that caused the property damage. The rationale stated by these courts for
applying this theory to investor-owned utilities is that property losses
resulting from a public improvement, such as the distribution of electricity,

1 can be spread across the larger community that benefited from such
2 improvement. However, in December 2017, the CPUC issued a decision
3 denying the investor-owned utility's request to include in its rates uninsured
4 wildfire-related costs arising from several 2007 fires, finding that the
5 investor-owned utility did not prudently manage and operate its facilities
6 prior to or at the outset of the 2007 wildfires.

7 In addition to liability for property damages, when inverse condemnation is
8 found to be applicable to a utility, the utility may be held liable, without
9 regard to fault, for associated interest and attorney's fees (collectively,
10 "Property Losses"). If inverse condemnation is held to be inapplicable to
11 SCE in connection with the December 2017 Wildfires, SCE could still be
12 held liable for Property Losses if those losses were found to have been
13 proximately caused by SCE's negligence. If SCE was found negligent,
14 SCE also could be held liable for fire suppression costs, business
15 interruption losses, evacuation costs, medical expenses and personal
16 injury/wrongful death claims. These potential liabilities, in the aggregate,
17 could be substantial. Additionally, SCE could potentially be subject to fines
18 for alleged violations of CPUC rules and laws in connection with the
19 December 2017 Wildfires.

20 SCE is aware of multiple lawsuits filed related to the December 2017
21 Wildfires naming SCE as a defendant. One of these lawsuits also named
22 Edison International as a defendant. At least four of these lawsuits were
23 filed as purported class actions. The lawsuits, which have been filed in the
24 superior courts of Ventura, Santa Barbara and Los Angeles Counties allege,
25 among other things, negligence, inverse condemnation, trespass, private
26 nuisance, and violations of the public utility and health and safety codes.
27 SCE expects to be the subject of additional lawsuits related to the
28 December 2017 Wildfires. The litigation could take a number of years to
be resolved because of the complexity of the matters and the time needed
to complete the ongoing investigations.

Given the preliminary stages of the investigations and the uncertainty as to
the causes of the December 2017 Wildfires, and the extent and magnitude
of potential damages, Edison International and SCE are currently unable to
reasonably estimate whether SCE will incur material losses and, if so, the
range of possible losses that could be incurred.

SCE has approximately \$1 billion of wildfire-specific insurance coverage,
subject to a self-insured retention of \$10 million per occurrence, for

1 wildfire-related claims for the period ending on May 31, 2018. SCE also
2 has approximately \$300 million of additional insurance coverage for
3 wildfire-related occurrences for the period from December 31, 2017 to
4 December 31, 2018 which may be used in addition to the \$1 billion in
5 wildfire insurance for wildfire events occurring on or after December 31,
6 2017 and on or before May 31, 2018, and would be available for new
7 wildfire events, if any, occurring after May 31, 2018 and on or before
8 December 30, 2018. Various coverage limitations within the policies that
9 make up SCE's wildfire insurance coverage could result in material self-
10 insured costs in the event of multiple wildfire occurrences during a policy
11 period. SCE also has other general liability insurance coverage of
12 approximately \$450 million but it is uncertain whether these other policies
13 would apply to liabilities alleged to be related to wildfires. Should
14 responsibility for damages be attributed to SCE for a significant portion of
15 the losses related to the December 2017 Wildfires, SCE's insurance may
16 not be sufficient to cover all such damages. SCE or its vegetation
17 management contractors may experience coverage reductions and/or
18 increased insurance costs in future years. No assurance can be given that
19 future losses will not exceed the limits of insurance coverage.

20 In addition, SCE may not be authorized to recover its uninsured damages
21 through customer rates if, for example, the CPUC finds that the damages
22 were incurred because SCE was not a prudent manager of its facilities. The
23 CPUC's Safety and Enforcement Division ("SED") is conducting an
24 investigation to assess the compliance of SCE's facilities with applicable
25 rules and regulations in areas impacted by the December 2017 Wildfires.

26 41. Similarly, the 2017 10-K discussed another natural disaster which
27 occurred in Santa Barbara County, California in January of 2018:

28 **Montecito Mudslides**

In January 2018, torrential rains in Santa Barbara County produced
mudslides and flooding in Montecito and surrounding areas (the "Montecito
Mudslides"). According to Santa Barbara County, the Montecito Mudslides
destroyed an estimated 135 structures, damaged an estimated 324 structures,
and resulted in at least 21 fatalities, with two additional fatalities presumed.

Six of the lawsuits mentioned above allege that SCE has responsibility for
the Thomas Fire and that the Thomas Fire proximately caused the

1 Montecito Mudslides, resulting in the plaintiffs' claimed damages. SCE
2 expects that additional lawsuits related to the Montecito Mudslides will be
3 filed.

4 As noted above, the cause of the Thomas Fire has not been determined. In
5 the event that SCE is determined to have liability for damages caused by the
6 Thomas Fire, SCE cannot predict whether the courts will conclude that the
7 Montecito Mudslides were caused by the Thomas Fire or that SCE is
8 responsible or liable for damages caused by the Montecito Mudslides. As a
9 result, Edison International and SCE are currently unable to reasonably
10 estimate whether SCE will incur material losses and, if so, the range of
11 possible losses that could be incurred. If it is determined that the Montecito
12 Mudslides were caused by the Thomas Fire and that SCE is responsible or
13 liable for damages caused by the Montecito Mudslides, then SCE's
14 insurance coverage for such losses may be limited to its wildfire insurance.
15 Additionally, if SCE is determined to be liable for a significant portion of
16 costs associated with the Montecito Mudslides, SCE's insurance may not be
17 sufficient to cover all such damages and SCE may be unable to recover any
18 uninsured losses.

19 If it is ultimately determined that SCE is legally responsible for losses
20 caused by the Montecito Mudslides, SCE could be held liable for resulting
21 Property Losses if inverse condemnation is found applicable. If SCE is
22 determined to have been negligent, in addition to Property Losses, SCE
23 could be liable for business interruption losses, evacuation costs, clean-up
24 costs, medical expenses and personal injury/wrongful death claims
25 associated with the Montecito Mudslides. These liabilities, in the aggregate,
26 could be substantial. SCE cannot predict whether it will be subjected to
27 regulatory fines related to the Montecito Mudslides.

28 42. The statements referenced in ¶¶ 26-41 were materially false and
misleading because Defendants made false and/or misleading statements, as well as
failed to disclose material adverse facts about the Company's business, operational and
compliance policies. Specifically, Defendants made false and/or misleading statements
and/or failed to disclose that: (i) the Company failed to maintain electricity
transmission and distribution networks in compliance with safety requirements and

1 regulations promulgated under state law; (ii) consequently, the Company was in
2 violation of state law and regulations; (iii) the Company's noncompliant electricity
3 networks created a significantly heightened risk of wildfires in California; and (iv) as a
4 result, the Company's public statements were materially false and misleading at all
5 relevant times.
6

7 **The Truth Begins to Emerge**

8
9 43. On November 8, 2018, two wildfires started in Southern California,
10 designated the Hill Fire and the Woolsey Fire. The Hill Fire, which broke out in
11 Ventura County, subsequently grew to 4,531 acres, according to Cal Fire. Stretching
12 from Los Angeles County to Ventura County, the Woolsey Fire burned 93,662 acres,
13 including 83 percent of all National Parks Service land in the Santa Monica Mountains
14 National Recreation Area, according to Cal Fire.
15
16

17 44. The Woolsey and Hill fires impacted a total of 45,470 Edison customers.
18

19 45. On November 9, 2018, the Company issued a press release providing an
20 update on the fires, stating in relevant part:
21

22 ROSEMEAD, Calif., November 9, 2018 — Southern California Edison's
23 Emergency Operations Center has mobilized resources and crews to assist
24 first responders and to begin restoring power in communities affected by the
25 wildfires in Ventura and Los Angeles counties as soon as fire officials say it
is safe.

26 *The company's top priority continues to be the safety of customers,*
27 *employees and communities.* SCE is working closely with first responder
28 partners and is prepared to safely and quickly restore power as soon as
possible.

1 As of 5:45 p.m., 23,000 customers were without power, with 20,000 of
2 them in Los Angeles County, many affected by the fires. SCE is currently
3 monitoring several fires impacting customers within its service territory,
4 including the Hill Fire in Ventura County and the Woolsey Fire in Ventura
5 and Los Angeles counties, which has moved into the Malibu area.

6 *The fires have damaged SCE equipment and lines and caused outages in*
7 *fire-affected areas.* Once it is safe to do so and access has been granted,
8 SCE's damage assessment teams will determine what equipment and repairs
9 are needed before repairs can begin. SCE air patrols may also be required to
10 fully assess damage caused by the fires in more remote areas, but that
11 access is limited due to flight restrictions for fire-fighting operations.

12 *SCE has been in communication with the California Public Utilities*
13 *Commission with respect to these fires and has submitted an initial*
14 *electric safety incident report on the Woolsey Fire reporting an outage in*
15 *the vicinity.* The information in the report is preliminary. There has been no
16 determination of origin or cause of either wildfire. SCE will fully cooperate
17 with any investigations.

18 * * *

19 **Edison's Efforts at Managing the Wildfire Threat in California**

20 *Safety is the company's top priority and a core value for SCE.* Our
21 employees work vigilantly year-round to strengthen the electric system and
22 protect the public and our employees against a variety of natural and man-
23 made threats. We have long taken substantial steps to reduce the risk of
24 wildfires in our service territory and continue to look for ways to enhance
25 our operational practices and infrastructure. SCE employs design and
26 construction standards, vegetation management practices and other
27 operational practices to mitigate wildfire risk and has collaborative
28 partnerships with fire agencies to maintain fire safety.

46. On November 12, 2018, the CPUC launched an investigation into Edison's
subsidiary Southern California Edison Company in order to "assess the compliance of
electrical facilities with applicable rules and regulations in fire-impacted

1 areas.” According to CPUC, electrical infrastructure may have suffered malfunctions
2 near ground zero of the blazes. Specifically, it was reported that on the day the fires
3 began SCE issued an alert to the CPUC that a substation circuit near the Woolsey Fire
4 origin "relayed," or sensed a disturbance on the circuit, just two minutes before Cal Fire
5 said that the devastating fire began.
6

7
8 47. Following CPUC’s announcement, Edison International’s stock price fell
9 \$7.44 per share, or more than 12%, to close at \$53.56 per share on November 12, 2018.
10 Over the following days, as the Hill and Woolsey Fires continued to burn, Edison
11 International’s stock price continued to fall, closing at \$47.19 on November 15, 2018, a
12 total drop of 32% from its price prior to CPUC’s announcement.
13
14

15 **CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS**

16 48. Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil
17 Procedure 23(a) and (b)(3) on behalf of a Class, consisting of all those who purchased or
18 otherwise acquired Edison securities during the Class Period (the “Class”); and were
19 damaged upon the revelation of the alleged corrective disclosures. Excluded from the
20 Class are Defendants herein, the officers and directors of the Company, at all relevant
21 times, members of their immediate families and their legal representatives, heirs,
22 successors or assigns and any entity in which Defendants have or had a controlling
23 interest.
24
25
26

27 49. The members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all members is
28 impracticable. Throughout the Class Period, Edison securities were actively traded on

1 the NYSE. While the exact number of Class members is unknown to Plaintiff at this
2 time and can be ascertained only through appropriate discovery, Plaintiff believes that
3 there are hundreds or thousands of members in the proposed Class. Record owners and
4 other members of the Class may be identified from records maintained by Edison or its
5 transfer agent and may be notified of the pendency of this action by mail, using the form
6 of notice similar to that customarily used in securities class actions.
7
8

9 50. Plaintiff's claims are typical of the claims of the members of the Class as all
10 members of the Class are similarly affected by Defendants' wrongful conduct in
11 violation of federal law that is complained of herein.
12

13 51. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the members of
14 the Class and has retained counsel competent and experienced in class and securities
15 litigation. Plaintiff has no interests antagonistic to or in conflict with those of the Class.
16
17

18 52. Common questions of law and fact exist as to all members of the Class and
19 predominate over any questions solely affecting individual members of the Class.
20 Among the questions of law and fact common to the Class are:
21

- 22 • whether the federal securities laws were violated by Defendants' acts as
23 alleged herein;
- 24 • whether statements made by Defendants to the investing public during the
25 Class Period misrepresented material facts about the business, operations
26 and management of Edison;
- 27 • whether the Individual Defendants caused Edison to issue false and
28 misleading financial statements during the Class Period;

- 1 • whether Defendants acted knowingly or recklessly in issuing false and
2 misleading financial statements;
- 3 • whether the prices of Edison securities during the Class Period were
4 artificially inflated because of the Defendants' conduct complained of
5 herein; and
- 6 • whether the members of the Class have sustained damages and, if so, what
7 is the proper measure of damages.

8 53. A class action is superior to all other available methods for the fair and
9 efficient adjudication of this controversy since joinder of all members is impracticable.
10 Furthermore, as the damages suffered by individual Class members may be relatively
11 small, the expense and burden of individual litigation make it impossible for members of
12 the Class to individually redress the wrongs done to them. There will be no difficulty in
13 the management of this action as a class action.
14

15 54. Plaintiff will rely, in part, upon the presumption of reliance established by
16 the fraud-on-the-market doctrine in that:
17

- 18 • Defendants made public misrepresentations or failed to disclose material
19 facts during the Class Period;
- 20 • the omissions and misrepresentations were material;
- 21 • Edison securities are traded in an efficient market;
- 22 • the Company's shares were liquid and traded with moderate to heavy
23 volume during the Class Period;
- 24 • the Company traded on the NYSE and was covered by multiple analysts;
- 25 • the misrepresentations and omissions alleged would tend to induce a
26 reasonable investor to misjudge the value of the Company's securities;
27 and
28

- Plaintiff and members of the Class purchased, acquired and/or sold Edison securities between the time the Defendants failed to disclose or misrepresented material facts and the time the true facts were disclosed, without knowledge of the omitted or misrepresented facts.

55. Based upon the foregoing, Plaintiff and the members of the Class are entitled to a presumption of reliance upon the integrity of the market.

56. Alternatively, Plaintiff and the members of the Class are entitled to the presumption of reliance established by the Supreme Court in *Affiliated Ute Citizens of the State of Utah v. United States*, 406 U.S. 128, 92 S. Ct. 2430 (1972), as Defendants omitted material information in their Class Period statements in violation of a duty to disclose such information, as detailed above.

COUNT I

(Violations of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 Promulgated Thereunder Against All Defendants)

57. Plaintiff repeats and reallege each and every allegation contained above as if fully set forth herein.

58. This Count is asserted against Defendants and is based upon Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78j(b), and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder by the SEC.

59. During the Class Period, Defendants engaged in a plan, scheme, conspiracy and course of conduct, pursuant to which they knowingly or recklessly engaged in acts, transactions, practices and courses of business which operated as a fraud and deceit upon Plaintiff and the other members of the Class; made various untrue statements of material

1 facts and omitted to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements made,
2 in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; and employed
3 devices, schemes and artifices to defraud in connection with the purchase and sale of
4 securities. Such scheme was intended to, and, throughout the Class Period, did: (i)
5 deceive the investing public, including Plaintiff and other Class members, as alleged
6 herein; (ii) artificially inflate and maintain the market price of Edison securities; and (iii)
7 cause Plaintiff and other members of the Class to purchase or otherwise acquire Edison
8 securities and options at artificially inflated prices. In furtherance of this unlawful
9 scheme, plan and course of conduct, Defendants, and each of them, took the actions set
10 forth herein.
11
12
13
14

15 60. Pursuant to the above plan, scheme, conspiracy and course of conduct, each
16 of the Defendants participated directly or indirectly in the preparation and/or issuance of
17 the quarterly and annual reports, SEC filings, press releases and other statements and
18 documents described above, including statements made to securities analysts and the
19 media that were designed to influence the market for Edison securities. Such reports,
20 filings, releases and statements were materially false and misleading in that they failed to
21 disclose material adverse information and misrepresented the truth about Edison finances
22 and business prospects.
23
24
25

26 61. By virtue of their positions at Edison , Defendants had actual knowledge
27 of the materially false and misleading statements and material omissions alleged herein
28 and intended thereby to deceive Plaintiff and the other members of the Class, or, in the

1 alternative, Defendants acted with reckless disregard for the truth in that they failed or
2 refused to ascertain and disclose such facts as would reveal the materially false and
3 misleading nature of the statements made, although such facts were readily available to
4 Defendants. Said acts and omissions of Defendants were committed willfully or with
5 reckless disregard for the truth. In addition, each Defendant knew or recklessly
6 disregarded that material facts were being misrepresented or omitted as described above.
7
8

9 62. Information showing that Defendants acted knowingly or with reckless
10 disregard for the truth is peculiarly within Defendants' knowledge and control. As the
11 senior managers and/or directors of Edison, the Individual Defendants had knowledge of
12 the details of Edison internal affairs.
13
14

15 63. The Individual Defendants are liable both directly and indirectly for the
16 wrongs complained of herein. Because of their positions of control and authority, the
17 Individual Defendants were able to and did, directly or indirectly, control the content of
18 the statements of Edison. As officers and/or directors of a publicly-held Company, the
19 Individual Defendants had a duty to disseminate timely, accurate, and truthful
20 information with respect to Edison businesses, operations, future financial condition and
21 future prospects. As a result of the dissemination of the aforementioned false and
22 misleading reports, releases and public statements, the market price of Edison securities
23 was artificially inflated throughout the Class Period. In ignorance of the adverse facts
24 concerning Edison business and financial condition which were concealed by
25 Defendants, Plaintiff and the other members of the Class purchased or otherwise
26
27
28

1 acquired Edison securities at artificially inflated prices and relied upon the price of the
2 securities, the integrity of the market for the securities and/or upon statements
3 disseminated by Defendants, and were damaged thereby.
4

5 64. During the Class Period, Edison securities were traded on an active and
6 efficient market. Plaintiff and the other members of the Class, relying on the materially
7 false and misleading statements described herein, which the Defendants made, issued or
8 caused to be disseminated, or relying upon the integrity of the market, purchased or
9 otherwise acquired shares of Edison securities at prices artificially inflated by
10 Defendants' wrongful conduct. Had Plaintiff and the other members of the Class known
11 the truth, they would not have purchased or otherwise acquired said securities, or would
12 not have purchased or otherwise acquired them at the inflated prices that were paid. At
13 the time of the purchases and/or acquisitions by Plaintiff and the Class, the true value of
14 Edison securities was substantially lower than the prices paid by Plaintiff and the other
15 members of the Class. The market price of Edison securities declined sharply upon
16 public disclosure of the facts alleged herein to the injury of Plaintiff and Class members.
17
18
19
20
21

22 65. By reason of the conduct alleged herein, Defendants knowingly or
23 recklessly, directly or indirectly, have violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and
24 Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder.
25

26 66. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' wrongful conduct, Plaintiff
27 and the other members of the Class suffered damages in connection with their respective
28 purchases, acquisitions and sales of the Company's securities during the Class Period,

1 upon the disclosure that the Company had been disseminating misrepresented financial
2 statements to the investing public.

3
4 **COUNT II**

5 **(Violations of Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act Against The Individual**
6 **Defendants)**

7 67. Plaintiff repeats and reallege each and every allegation contained in the
8 foregoing paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

9
10 68. During the Class Period, the Individual Defendants participated in the
11 operation and management of Edison, and conducted and participated, directly and
12 indirectly, in the conduct of Edison business affairs. Because of their senior positions,
13 they knew the adverse non-public information about Edison misstatement of income and
14 expenses and false financial statements.
15

16
17 69. As officers and/or directors of a publicly owned Company, the Individual
18 Defendants had a duty to disseminate accurate and truthful information with respect to
19 Edison financial condition and results of operations, and to correct promptly any public
20 statements issued by Edison which had become materially false or misleading.
21

22
23 70. Because of their positions of control and authority as senior officers, the
24 Individual Defendants were able to, and did, control the contents of the various reports,
25 press releases and public filings which Edison disseminated in the marketplace during
26 the Class Period concerning Edison results of operations. Throughout the Class Period,
27 the Individual Defendants exercised their power and authority to cause Edison to engage
28

1 in the wrongful acts complained of herein. The Individual Defendants therefore, were
2 “controlling persons” of Edison within the meaning of Section 20(a) of the Exchange
3 Act. In this capacity, they participated in the unlawful conduct alleged which artificially
4 inflated the market price of Edison securities.
5

6 71. Each of the Individual Defendants, therefore, acted as a controlling person
7 of Edison. By reason of their senior management positions and/or being directors of
8 Edison, each of the Individual Defendants had the power to direct the actions of, and
9 exercised the same to cause, Edison to engage in the unlawful acts and conduct
10 complained of herein. Each of the Individual Defendants exercised control over the
11 general operations of Edison and possessed the power to control the specific activities
12 which comprise the primary violations about which Plaintiff and the other members of
13 the Class complain.
14
15
16

17 72. By reason of the above conduct, the Individual Defendants are liable
18 pursuant to Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act for the violations committed by Edison.
19
20

21 **PRAYER FOR RELIEF**

22 **WHEREFORE**, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendants as follows:
23

24 A. Determining that the instant action may be maintained as a class action
25 under Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, and certifying Plaintiff as the
26 Class representative;
27
28

1 B. Requiring Defendants to pay damages sustained by Plaintiff and the Class
2 by reason of the acts and transactions alleged herein;

3 C. Awarding Plaintiff and the other members of the Class prejudgment and
4 post-judgment interest, as well as their reasonable attorneys' fees, expert fees and other
5 costs; and
6

7 D. Awarding such other and further relief as this Court may deem just and
8 proper.
9

10 **DEMAND FOR TRIAL BY JURY**

11 Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury.
12

13 Dated: November 16, 2018

14 Respectfully submitted,

15 **POMERANTZ LLP**

16 */s/ Jennifer Pafiti*

17 _____
18 Jennifer Pafiti (SBN 282790)
19 468 North Camden Drive
20 Beverly Hills, CA 90210
21 Telephone: (818) 532-6499
22 E-mail: jpafiti@pomlaw.com

23 **POMERANTZ LLP**

24 Jeremy A. Lieberman
25 J. Alexander Hood II
26 Jonathan Lindenfeld
27 600 Third Avenue, 20th Floor
28 New York, New York 10016
Telephone: (212) 661-1100
Facsimile: (212) 661-8665
Email: jalieberman@pomlaw.com
ahood@pomlaw.com
jlindenfeld@pomlaw.com

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

POMERANTZ LLP

Patrick V. Dahlstrom
10 South La Salle Street, Suite 3505
Chicago, Illinois 60603
Telephone: (312) 377-1181
Facsimile: (312) 377-1184
Email: pdahlstrom@pomlaw.com

**BRONSTEIN, GEWIRTZ
& GROSSMAN, LLC**

Peretz Bronstein
60 East 42nd Street, Suite 4600
New York, New York 10165
Telephone: (212) 697-6484
Email: peretz@bgandg.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff

Friday, November 16, 2018

Edison (EIX)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO FEDERAL SECURITIES LAWS

1. I make this declaration pursuant to Section 27(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933 ("Securities Act") and/or Section 21D(a)(2) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ("Exchange Act") as amended by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
2. I have reviewed a Complaint against Edison International and Southern California Edison Company ("SCE", and together with Edison International, "Edison" or the "Company") and authorize the filing of a comparable complaint on my behalf.
3. I did not purchase or acquire Edison securities at the direction of plaintiffs' counsel or in order to participate in any private action arising under the Securities Act or Exchange Act.
4. I am willing to serve as a representative party on behalf of a Class of investors who purchased or acquired Edison securities during the class period, including providing testimony at deposition and trial, if necessary. I understand that the Court has the authority to select the most adequate lead plaintiff in this action.
5. To the best of my current knowledge, the attached sheet lists all of my transactions in Edison securities during the Class Period as specified in the Complaint.
6. During the three-year period preceding the date on which this Certification is signed, I have not sought to serve as a representative party on behalf of a class under the federal securities laws.
7. I agree not to accept any payment for serving as a representative party on behalf of the class as set forth in the Complaint, beyond my pro rata share of any recovery, except such reasonable costs and expenses directly relating to the representation of the class as ordered or approved by the Court.
8. I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Signature

A handwritten signature in blue ink that reads "Glen Barnes". The signature is written in a cursive style with a large initial "G" and "B".

Full Name

Glen Barnes

(redacted)



Edison International (EIX)

Barnes, Glen

List of Purchases and Sales

Date	Purchase or Sale	Number of Shares/Unit	Price Per Share/Unit
11/22/2016	Purchase	1,000	\$69.7900

**UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT, CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
CIVIL COVER SHEET**

I. (a) PLAINTIFFS (Check box if you are representing yourself <input type="checkbox"/>) GLEN BARNES, individually and on Behalf of All Others Similarly Situated,	DEFENDANTS (Check box if you are representing yourself <input type="checkbox"/>) See Schedule A
(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff <u>Los Angeles, CA</u> (EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)	County of Residence of First Listed Defendant <u>Los Angeles, CA</u> (IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)
(c) Attorneys (Firm Name, Address and Telephone Number) If you are representing yourself, provide the same information. Jennifer Pafiti Pomerantz LLP, 468 North Camden Drive, Beverly Hills, CA 90210 (818) 532-6449	Attorneys (Firm Name, Address and Telephone Number) If you are representing yourself, provide the same information.

II. BASIS OF JURISDICTION (Place an X in one box only.) <input type="checkbox"/> 1. U.S. Government Plaintiff <input type="checkbox"/> 2. U.S. Government Defendant <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> 3. Federal Question (U.S. Government Not a Party) <input type="checkbox"/> 4. Diversity (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item III)	III. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES-For Diversity Cases Only (Place an X in one box for plaintiff and one for defendant) <table style="width:100%; border: none;"> <tr> <td style="border: none;">Citizen of This State</td> <td style="border: none; text-align: center;">PTF DEF</td> <td style="border: none;"> <input type="checkbox"/> 1 <input type="checkbox"/> 1 </td> <td style="border: none;">Incorporated or Principal Place of Business in this State</td> <td style="border: none; text-align: center;">PTF DEF</td> <td style="border: none;"> <input type="checkbox"/> 4 <input type="checkbox"/> 4 </td> </tr> <tr> <td style="border: none;">Citizen of Another State</td> <td style="border: none; text-align: center;">PTF DEF</td> <td style="border: none;"> <input type="checkbox"/> 2 <input type="checkbox"/> 2 </td> <td style="border: none;">Incorporated and Principal Place of Business in Another State</td> <td style="border: none; text-align: center;">PTF DEF</td> <td style="border: none;"> <input type="checkbox"/> 5 <input type="checkbox"/> 5 </td> </tr> <tr> <td style="border: none;">Citizen or Subject of a Foreign Country</td> <td style="border: none; text-align: center;">PTF DEF</td> <td style="border: none;"> <input type="checkbox"/> 3 <input type="checkbox"/> 3 </td> <td style="border: none;">Foreign Nation</td> <td style="border: none; text-align: center;">PTF DEF</td> <td style="border: none;"> <input type="checkbox"/> 6 <input type="checkbox"/> 6 </td> </tr> </table>	Citizen of This State	PTF DEF	<input type="checkbox"/> 1 <input type="checkbox"/> 1	Incorporated or Principal Place of Business in this State	PTF DEF	<input type="checkbox"/> 4 <input type="checkbox"/> 4	Citizen of Another State	PTF DEF	<input type="checkbox"/> 2 <input type="checkbox"/> 2	Incorporated and Principal Place of Business in Another State	PTF DEF	<input type="checkbox"/> 5 <input type="checkbox"/> 5	Citizen or Subject of a Foreign Country	PTF DEF	<input type="checkbox"/> 3 <input type="checkbox"/> 3	Foreign Nation	PTF DEF	<input type="checkbox"/> 6 <input type="checkbox"/> 6
Citizen of This State	PTF DEF	<input type="checkbox"/> 1 <input type="checkbox"/> 1	Incorporated or Principal Place of Business in this State	PTF DEF	<input type="checkbox"/> 4 <input type="checkbox"/> 4														
Citizen of Another State	PTF DEF	<input type="checkbox"/> 2 <input type="checkbox"/> 2	Incorporated and Principal Place of Business in Another State	PTF DEF	<input type="checkbox"/> 5 <input type="checkbox"/> 5														
Citizen or Subject of a Foreign Country	PTF DEF	<input type="checkbox"/> 3 <input type="checkbox"/> 3	Foreign Nation	PTF DEF	<input type="checkbox"/> 6 <input type="checkbox"/> 6														

IV. ORIGIN (Place an X in one box only.)

1. Original Proceeding
 2. Removed from State Court
 3. Remanded from Appellate Court
 4. Reinstated or Reopened
 5. Transferred from Another District (Specify)
 6. Multidistrict Litigation - Transfer
 8. Multidistrict Litigation - Direct File

V. REQUESTED IN COMPLAINT: JURY DEMAND: Yes No (Check "Yes" only if demanded in complaint.)

CLASS ACTION under F.R.Cv.P. 23: Yes No **MONEY DEMANDED IN COMPLAINT: \$** _____

VI. CAUSE OF ACTION (Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing and write a brief statement of cause. Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity.)
 15 U.S.C. §§ 78j(b) and 78t(a), and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder, 17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5

VII. NATURE OF SUIT (Place an X in one box only).

OTHER STATUTES	CONTRACT	REAL PROPERTY/COM	IMMIGRATION	PRISONER PETITIONS	PROPERTY RIGHTS
<input type="checkbox"/> 375 False Claims Act	<input type="checkbox"/> 110 Insurance	<input type="checkbox"/> 240 Torts to Land	<input type="checkbox"/> 462 Naturalization Application	Habeas Corpus:	<input type="checkbox"/> 820 Copyrights
<input type="checkbox"/> 376 Qui Tam (31 USC 3729(a))	<input type="checkbox"/> 120 Marine	<input type="checkbox"/> 245 Tort Product Liability	<input type="checkbox"/> 465 Other Immigration Actions	<input type="checkbox"/> 463 Alien Detainee	<input type="checkbox"/> 830 Patent
<input type="checkbox"/> 400 State Reapportionment	<input type="checkbox"/> 130 Miller Act	<input type="checkbox"/> 290 All Other Real Property	TORTS	<input type="checkbox"/> 510 Motions to Vacate Sentence	<input type="checkbox"/> 840 Trademark
<input type="checkbox"/> 410 Antitrust	<input type="checkbox"/> 140 Negotiable Instrument	TORTS PERSONAL INJURY	PERSONAL PROPERTY	<input type="checkbox"/> 530 General	SOCIAL SECURITY
<input type="checkbox"/> 430 Banks and Banking	<input type="checkbox"/> 150 Recovery of Overpayment & Enforcement of Judgment	<input type="checkbox"/> 310 Airplane	<input type="checkbox"/> 370 Other Fraud	<input type="checkbox"/> 535 Death Penalty	<input type="checkbox"/> 861 HIA (1395ff)
<input type="checkbox"/> 450 Commerce/ICC Rates/Etc.	<input type="checkbox"/> 151 Medicare Act	<input type="checkbox"/> 315 Airplane Product Liability	<input type="checkbox"/> 371 Truth in Lending	Other:	<input type="checkbox"/> 862 Black Lung (923)
<input type="checkbox"/> 460 Deportation	<input type="checkbox"/> 152 Recovery of Defaulted Student Loan (Excl. Vet.)	<input type="checkbox"/> 320 Assault, Libel & Slander	<input type="checkbox"/> 380 Other Personal Property Damage	<input type="checkbox"/> 540 Mandamus/Other	<input type="checkbox"/> 863 DIWC/DIWW (405 (g))
<input type="checkbox"/> 470 Racketeer Influenced & Corrupt Org.	<input type="checkbox"/> 153 Recovery of Overpayment of Vet. Benefits	<input type="checkbox"/> 330 Fed. Employers' Liability	<input type="checkbox"/> 385 Property Damage Product Liability	<input type="checkbox"/> 550 Civil Rights	<input type="checkbox"/> 864 SSID Title XVI
<input type="checkbox"/> 480 Consumer Credit	<input type="checkbox"/> 160 Stockholders' Suits	<input type="checkbox"/> 340 Marine	BANKRUPTCY	<input type="checkbox"/> 555 Prison Condition	<input type="checkbox"/> 865 RSI (405 (g))
<input type="checkbox"/> 490 Cable/Sat TV	<input type="checkbox"/> 190 Other Contract	<input type="checkbox"/> 345 Marine Product Liability	<input type="checkbox"/> 422 Appeal 28 USC 158	<input type="checkbox"/> 560 Civil Detainee Conditions of Confinement	FEDERAL TAX SUITS
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> 850 Securities/Commodities/Exchange	<input type="checkbox"/> 195 Contract Product Liability	<input type="checkbox"/> 350 Motor Vehicle	<input type="checkbox"/> 423 Withdrawal 28 USC 157	FORFEITURE/PENALTY	<input type="checkbox"/> 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff or Defendant)
<input type="checkbox"/> 890 Other Statutory Actions	<input type="checkbox"/> 196 Franchise	<input type="checkbox"/> 355 Motor Vehicle Product Liability	CIVIL RIGHTS	<input type="checkbox"/> 625 Drug Related Seizure of Property 21 USC 881	<input type="checkbox"/> 871 IRS-Third Party 26 USC 7609
<input type="checkbox"/> 891 Agricultural Acts	REAL PROPERTY	<input type="checkbox"/> 360 Other Personal Injury	<input type="checkbox"/> 440 Other Civil Rights	<input type="checkbox"/> 690 Other	
<input type="checkbox"/> 893 Environmental Matters	<input type="checkbox"/> 210 Land Condemnation	<input type="checkbox"/> 362 Personal Injury-Med Malpractice	<input type="checkbox"/> 441 Voting	LABOR	<input type="checkbox"/> 710 Fair Labor Standards Act
<input type="checkbox"/> 895 Freedom of Info. Act	<input type="checkbox"/> 220 Foreclosure	<input type="checkbox"/> 365 Personal Injury-Product Liability	<input type="checkbox"/> 442 Employment	<input type="checkbox"/> 720 Labor/Mgmt. Relations	<input type="checkbox"/> 740 Railway Labor Act
<input type="checkbox"/> 896 Arbitration	<input type="checkbox"/> 230 Rent Lease & Ejection	<input type="checkbox"/> 367 Health Care/Pharmaceutical Personal Injury Product Liability	<input type="checkbox"/> 443 Housing/Accommodations	<input type="checkbox"/> 751 Family and Medical Leave Act	<input type="checkbox"/> 790 Other Labor Litigation
<input type="checkbox"/> 899 Admin. Procedures Act/Review of Appeal of Agency Decision		<input type="checkbox"/> 368 Asbestos Personal Injury Product Liability	<input type="checkbox"/> 445 American with Disabilities-Employment	<input type="checkbox"/> 791 Employee Ret. Inc. Security Act	
<input type="checkbox"/> 950 Constitutionality of State Statutes			<input type="checkbox"/> 446 American with Disabilities-Other		
			<input type="checkbox"/> 448 Education		

**UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT, CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
CIVIL COVER SHEET**

VIII. VENUE: Your answers to the questions below will determine the division of the Court to which this case will be initially assigned. This initial assignment is subject to change, in accordance with the Court's General Orders, upon review by the Court of your Complaint or Notice of Removal.

QUESTION A: Was this case removed from state court? <input type="checkbox"/> Yes <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> No If "no," skip to Question B. If "yes," check the box to the right that applies, enter the corresponding division in response to Question E, below, and continue from there.	STATE CASE WAS PENDING IN THE COUNTY OF:	
	<input type="checkbox"/> Los Angeles, Ventura, Santa Barbara, or San Luis Obispo	INITIAL DIVISION IN CACD IS:
	<input type="checkbox"/> Orange	Western
	<input type="checkbox"/> Riverside or San Bernardino	Southern
		Eastern

QUESTION B: Is the United States, or one of its agencies or employees, a PLAINTIFF in this action? <input type="checkbox"/> Yes <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> No If "no," skip to Question C. If "yes," answer Question B.1, at right.	B.1. Do 50% or more of the defendants who reside in the district reside in Orange Co? check one of the boxes to the right →	<input type="checkbox"/> YES. Your case will initially be assigned to the Southern Division. Enter "Southern" in response to Question E, below, and continue from there. <input type="checkbox"/> NO. Continue to Question B.2.
	B.2. Do 50% or more of the defendants who reside in the district reside in Riverside and/or San Bernardino Counties? (Consider the two counties together.) check one of the boxes to the right →	<input type="checkbox"/> YES. Your case will initially be assigned to the Eastern Division. Enter "Eastern" in response to Question E, below, and continue from there. <input type="checkbox"/> NO. Your case will initially be assigned to the Western Division. Enter "Western" in response to Question E, below, and continue from there.

QUESTION C: Is the United States, or one of its agencies or employees, a DEFENDANT in this action? <input type="checkbox"/> Yes <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> No If "no," skip to Question D. If "yes," answer Question C.1, at right.	C.1. Do 50% or more of the plaintiffs who reside in the district reside in Orange Co? check one of the boxes to the right →	<input type="checkbox"/> YES. Your case will initially be assigned to the Southern Division. Enter "Southern" in response to Question E, below, and continue from there. <input type="checkbox"/> NO. Continue to Question C.2.
	C.2. Do 50% or more of the plaintiffs who reside in the district reside in Riverside and/or San Bernardino Counties? (Consider the two counties together.) check one of the boxes to the right →	<input type="checkbox"/> YES. Your case will initially be assigned to the Eastern Division. Enter "Eastern" in response to Question E, below, and continue from there. <input type="checkbox"/> NO. Your case will initially be assigned to the Western Division. Enter "Western" in response to Question E, below, and continue from there.

QUESTION D: Location of plaintiffs and defendants? Indicate the location(s) in which 50% or more of <i>plaintiffs who reside in this district</i> reside. (Check up to two boxes, or leave blank if none of these choices apply.) Indicate the location(s) in which 50% or more of <i>defendants who reside in this district</i> reside. (Check up to two boxes, or leave blank if none of these choices apply.)	A. Orange County	B. Riverside or San Bernardino County	C. Los Angeles, Ventura, Santa Barbara, or San Luis Obispo County
	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>
	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>

D.1. Is there at least one answer in Column A? <input type="checkbox"/> Yes <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> No If "yes," your case will initially be assigned to the SOUTHERN DIVISION. Enter "Southern" in response to Question E, below, and continue from there. If "no," go to question D2 to the right. →	D.2. Is there at least one answer in Column B? <input type="checkbox"/> Yes <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> No If "yes," your case will initially be assigned to the EASTERN DIVISION. Enter "Eastern" in response to Question E, below. If "no," your case will be assigned to the WESTERN DIVISION. Enter "Western" in response to Question E, below. ↓
---	---

QUESTION E: Initial Division? Enter the initial division determined by Question A, B, C, or D above: →	INITIAL DIVISION IN CACD WESTERN
--	---

QUESTION F: Northern Counties? Do 50% or more of plaintiffs or defendants in this district reside in Ventura, Santa Barbara, or San Luis Obispo counties? <input type="checkbox"/> Yes <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> No

**UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT, CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
CIVIL COVER SHEET**

IX(a). IDENTICAL CASES: Has this action been previously filed in this court? NO YES

If yes, list case number(s): _____

IX(b). RELATED CASES: Is this case related (as defined below) to any civil or criminal case(s) previously filed in this court?

NO YES

If yes, list case number(s): _____

Civil cases are related when they (check all that apply):

- A. Arise from the same or a closely related transaction, happening, or event;
- B. Call for determination of the same or substantially related or similar questions of law and fact; or
- C. For other reasons would entail substantial duplication of labor if heard by different judges.

Note: That cases may involve the same patent, trademark, or copyright is not, in itself, sufficient to deem cases related.

A civil forfeiture case and a criminal case are related when they (check all that apply):

- A. Arise from the same or a closely related transaction, happening, or event;
- B. Call for determination of the same or substantially related or similar questions of law and fact; or
- C. Involve one or more defendants from the criminal case in common and would entail substantial duplication of labor if heard by different judges.

X. SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY

(OR SELF-REPRESENTED LITIGANT): /s/Jennifer Pafiti

DATE: 11/16/2018

Notice to Counsel/Parties: The submission of this Civil Cover Sheet is required by Local Rule 3-1. This Form CV-71 and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. For more detailed instructions, see separate instruction sheet (CV-071A).

Key to Statistical codes relating to Social Security Cases:

Nature of Suit Code	Abbreviation	Substantive Statement of Cause of Action
861	HIA	All claims for health insurance benefits (Medicare) under Title 18, Part A, of the Social Security Act, as amended. Also, include claims by hospitals, skilled nursing facilities, etc., for certification as providers of services under the program. (42 U.S.C. 1935FF(b))
862	BL	All claims for "Black Lung" benefits under Title 4, Part B, of the Federal Coal Mine Health and Safety Act of 1969. (30 U.S.C. 923)
863	DIWC	All claims filed by insured workers for disability insurance benefits under Title 2 of the Social Security Act, as amended; plus all claims filed for child's insurance benefits based on disability. (42 U.S.C. 405 (g))
863	DIWW	All claims filed for widows or widowers insurance benefits based on disability under Title 2 of the Social Security Act, as amended. (42 U.S.C. 405 (g))
864	SSID	All claims for supplemental security income payments based upon disability filed under Title 16 of the Social Security Act, as amended.
865	RSI	All claims for retirement (old age) and survivors benefits under Title 2 of the Social Security Act, as amended. (42 U.S.C. 405 (g))

SCHEDULE A

EDISON INTERNATIONAL, SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY,
PEDRO J. PIZARRO MARIA RIGATTI, KEVIN M. PAYNE, WILLIAM M.
PETMECKY III, THEODORE F. CRAVER, JR. and WILLIAM JAMES
SCILACCI,